
Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable 
Development  
 
Dear Member, 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Lead Member for Planning and 
Sustainable Development to be held as follows for the transaction of the business 

indicated. 
Tom Stannard 
Chief Executive 

 
An audio broadcast of this meeting will be live-streamed. 

 
Should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, which will 
be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by sending an 

email to the address at the bottom of this agenda. 
 

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place. 
 
Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 

the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus 

 
DATE: Tuesday, 19 April 2022 

 
TIME:  10.00 am 

 
VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting – the live audio broadcast of this meeting 

can be accessed via the link below. 

 
 

AGENDA 

 
 THE LIVE AUDIO BROADCAST CAN BE ACCESSED VIA THE 

LINK BELOW: 

This link will work if you are using a Microsoft device.  If you are using 

an Apple or android based device, you will need to download the 
Microsoft Teams app in order to view the meeting via this link: 
View the Lead Member Briefing for Planning & Sustainable 

Development - 19 April 2022 
 

 

1   Apologies for absence.  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest.  

 

 

3   Items for Decision (Part 1 - Open to the Public):  

 

 

3a City of Salford (Nightingale Gardens, Salford) (Prohibition of Waiting) 
Order 2022.  

 

(Pages 1 - 12) 

3b City of Salford (Chapel Street, Ordsall) (One Way Traffic with Contra (Pages 13 - 24) 

Public Document Pack

https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTM0ZmE2NzEtMDVmNi00ZDQ4LTgwZWYtOTRjZjU2ZGUyMmMz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d&btype=a&role=a
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTM0ZmE2NzEtMDVmNi00ZDQ4LTgwZWYtOTRjZjU2ZGUyMmMz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d&btype=a&role=a


 

Flow Bus Lane) Order 2022 AND Salford City Council (Victoria Bridge 
Street, Salford) (Revocation of One-Way Order, Introduction of 

Weight Limit and Prohibition of Right Turn) Order 2013 (Amendment) 
Order 2022.  
 

3c Swinton Greenway - South Avenue - TRO 2366 (Correction re. 
Decision Notice arising from Lead Member Briefing held on 16 

November 2021).  
 

(Pages 25 - 38) 

3d Parr Fold Park - Section 106 Contribution Investment.  

 

(Pages 39 - 44) 

4   Exclusion of the Public.  

 

 

5   Items for Decision (Part 2 - Closed to the Public): No items.  

 

 

 
Contact Officer: Claire Edwards 

Tel No: 0161 793 2602 
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


 1 

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 

 

 

 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO LEAD MEMBER BRIEFING FOR 
PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

 
ON 

 
19th April 2022

 
 

CITY OF SALFORD (NIGHTINGALE GARDENS, SALFORD) 

(PROHIBITION OF WAITING) ORDER 2022 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  

 
That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the 
contents of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a 

decision to: 
 

(i) accede to the objection(s) in part; and 
(ii) approve the modifications to the scheme as set out in this report; and 
(iii) authorise the making of the Traffic Regulation Order in the modified form. 

 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

A new residential housing development situated both east and west of Hospital Road 

in Salford has been constructed. Therefore, the Traffic Regulation Orders in the area 

are being reviewed to where possible improve the amenities of the new development 

and maintain access and highway safety in the area. The streets affected by the 

proposals are Hospital Road, Borchardt Drive, Liebert Drive, Holden Drive, Sillavan 

Close, Wrigley Avenue and Stancliffe Drive. 

 

 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
 

KEY DECISION: No 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



 2 

DETAILS:  

As part of the new residential housing development; it has been identified that there is 

a need to introduce new traffic restrictions and a need to review any existing restrictions 

to service the new development.  

With regards to the new development, there is a need for appropriate ‘No Waiting at 

Any Time’ restrictions at locations to ensure safe access and egress for all vehicles 

including service and emergency vehicles. Proposals will also ensure pedestrian 

crossing points are kept clear and visibility is maintained. In addition the residential 

area is to be subject to a 20mph speed limit. 

It is therefore proposed to introduce a new Traffic Regulation Order comprising of No 

waiting at any time restrictions (NWAAT) and a 20mph zone in the streets within the 

development. The streets consist of multiple junctions and cul-de-sac’s turning heads; 

to allow service vehicles to deliver goods and refuse wagons to remove waste from 

site; NWAAT restrictions are proposed at these locations. Also included are the new 

junction off Hospital Road, and Manchester Road A6, Holden Drive, north and south 

access and Liebert Drive as well as Wrigley Avenues junction with Manchester Road 

(A6) 

 

The lengths and the locations of the original proposed and revised restrictions can be 

found in the schedule in Appendix 1.  

The streets of the new development are proposed to be a 20mph zone as they are 

purely residential and 20mph is in line with government proposals to make all 

residential estates 20mph where appropriate. 

 
PROPOSAL 

 

Introduction of  

 
SCHEDULE 1 

 
PROVISION OF “NO WAITING AT ANY TIME” RESTRICTIONS 

The lengths and the locations of the original proposed and revised restrictions can be 

found in the schedules in Appendix 1. Original and revised proposals 

 
SCHEDULE 2 

 
PROVISION OF 20MPH STREETS 

The 20mph streets included in the original proposals have not changed, as there were 

no objections to this element of the TRO proposals, the schedule can be found at the 

bottom of Appendix 1 outlining the original proposals 

 

Page 2



 3 

CONSIDERATION OF OBJECTIONS 
 

The following table summarises the objection and provides a response. 

 
Following the formal consultations period 4 objections were received, 3 objecting to 

the restrictions proposed in the turning heads and one to the restrictions as a whole. 
 
Following consultation with councillors and bin collection services, it was confirmed 

that at present there are no issues with parking in the turning heads affecting bin and 
recycling collections. As such it was agreed the restrictions to the turning heads would 

be dropped.  
 
After which 3 of the objectors withdrew their objections, unfortunately the fourth 

objector has still not responded to our emails asking if they are now prepared to 
withdraw their objections, hence this report.      

 

OBJECTION 1 REPONSE 

I have recently become aware that 
you are planning to put a no stopping 
traffic order on Hospital Road 

(outside the front of my house) and 
Borchardt Drive (around the back of 

my house) and would like to object to 
this.  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
I require access care workers to park   

 
 

There are no proposed restrictions in 
front of your house and the ones 
proposed for the turning head on 

Borchardt Drive have been removed. 
 

The nearest restrictions to your 
property are junction protection on 
Holden Drive (nothing additional on 

Hospital Road at this junction) and 
Junction protection at Hospital Road 

and Borchardt Drive, standard 10m 
apart from the section north of 
Borchardt Drive with is slightly longer 

to protect a pedestrian dropped kerb 
crossing point. 

 
 
The restrictions are only on the 

junctions within the area, which 
vehicles should not be parking close 

to anyway, as it would make access 
and egress for other drivers difficult 
and unsafe if visibility sight lines were 

obscured. There is still considered to 
be adequate on street parking in the 

area. 

 
As the email contained personal information the comments have been summarised 
to remove personal content  

 
 
 
 

Page 3



 4 

 

1. Traffic Advisory Panel 
 

The Lead Member Briefing will be held online. Members of the Traffic Advisory 
Panel will be invited to join the Briefing. The objectors will have the opportunity 

to make their representations to the Lead Member during the Briefing. 
 

 

Recommendation 

 

It is the recommendation that the lead member for Planning & Sustainable 
Development, approve modifications as detailed within this document and approve the 
implementation of the Traffic Regulation Orders in the modified form. 
 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

 
Proposals will ensure access to the new development are kept clear at all times and 
there is sufficient space for service and emergency vehicles to safely access and 

egress junctions. 
 
Proposals will also ensure as it is all residential estate, that an appropriate speed limit 

of 20mph will be in operation on these residential roads.  
 

Local Councillor Comments 

Local councillors were advised of the objections received and proposals to progress a 
slightly modified scheme, to which they were in agreement.  
 

 
 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
 
The proposals will be an effective way of ensuring safe access and egress to the new 

development, ensuring suitable road width for larger vehicles to access and ensuring 
visibility. 

 
It will also ensure a suitable speed limit for a residential estate. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
The Council, by virtue of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 can introduce orders to 
manage traffic. Where Traffic Regulation Orders are required, they should not give rise 

to any particular legal implications provided the works and procedures are carried out 
in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements, which would include the 

consideration of any objections to a proposed TRO. 

Page 4



 5 

 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS   None, proposals being funded by developer 
 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Ray Scholes E – mail      raymond.scholes@salford.gov.uk 

 
 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  Swinton Park 

 
Swinton Park Salford – Councillors: J. Cammell, S. Dickman and H. Fletcher  
 

 
John Searle 

Strategic Director, Place 
 
 
APPENDICES  

 

A. Proposed revised schedule (Below) 

B. Legal Site Notice (Below) 

C. Revised proposal plans with agreed amendments (Attached) 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 5

mailto:raymond.scholes@salford.gov.uk


 6 

 
Appendix A 

 

Revised Schedule 
 
SCHEDULE 1 

 
PROVISION OF “NO WAITING AT ANY TIME” RESTRICTIONS 

 

Street Side Description 

Wrigley Ave 

 
 

Both sides 

 
 

From the north eastern extended kerbline 

of A6 Manchester Road, in a north 
easterly direction for a distance of         

10 metres.  

Borchardt Drive Both sides 
 

From the western extended kerbline of 
Hospital Road in a westerly direction for a 

distance of 10 meters. 

Liebert Drive Both sides 
 

From the western extended kerbline of 
Hospital Road in a westerly direction for a 

distance of 10 meters. 

Holden Drive 
Southern Access 

Both sides 
 

From the eastern extended kerbline of 
Hospital Road, in an easterly direction for 
a distance of 12 metres. 

Holden Drive 
Northern Access 

Both sides 
 

From the eastern extended kerbline of 
Hospital Road, in an easterly direction for 
a distance of 10 metres. 

Hospital Road West side From a point 10m south of the southern 

extended kerbline of Borchardt Drive, in a 
northerly direction to a point 15m north of 

the northern extended kerbline of 
Borchardt Drive. 

Hospital Road West side From the northern extended kerbline of 

Liebert Drive, in a northerly direction for a 
distance of 10 metres. 

 
 
SCHEDULE 2 

 
PROVISION OF 20MPH STREETS 
 

Street Name Comments 

Wrigley Avenue For its entire length 

Page 6



 7 

Stancliffe Drive For its entire length 

Holden Drive For its entire length 

Sillavan Close For its entire length 

Borchardt Drive For its entire length 

Liebert Drive For its entire length 

 
 

Appendix B 

 
Legal Site Notice NWAAT  

 
Notice is hereby given that Salford City Council proposes to make the City of Salford 
(Nightingale Gardens, Salford)(Prohibition of Waiting) Order 2022 under the Road 

Traffic Regulation Act 1984. The effect of the Order will to introduce the following: 
No Waiting At Any Time on:  

Wrigley Avenue, both sides, from A6 Manchester Road in a north easterly direction 

for 10m;  
Stancliffe Drive, both sides, from its cul-de-sac end in a north easterly direction for 

12m; 
Borchardt Drive, west side and east side, from a point 18m south of the cul-de-sac 

end (west side) in a northerly then westerly, northerly, easterly, northerly, easterly 
and southerly directions, to a point 6m south of the cul-de-sac end (east side), a total 
distance of 36m;  
Borchardt Drive, north and south sides, from Hospital Road in a westerly direction 

for 10m;   
Liebert Drive, both sides, from Hospital Road in a westerly direction for 10m; 
Liebert Drive, both sides, from its cul-de-sac end in a north easterly direction for a 

distance of 10m;  
Holden Drive, southern access, both sides, from Hospital Road, in an easterly 

direction for a distance of 12m;  
Holden Drive, northern access, both sides, from Hospital Road in an easterly 

direction for 10m;  
Hospital Road, west side, from 10m south of Borchardt Drive in a northerly direction 

to 15m north of Borchardt Drive;  
Hospital Road, west side, from Liebert Drive in a northerly direction for 10m. 

A copy of the proposed Order together with the plan showing the proposal and a 
statement of the Council's reasons for proposing to make the Order may be 
inspected at Swinton Gateway, 100 Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 6BP Monday to 

Friday 9am to 6pm. Details can be viewed online at 
http://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/traffic-orders/. If you wish to 

object to the proposed Order you should send the grounds of your objection in writing 
to Fiona Ledden, City Solicitor PO BOX 532, TOWN HALL, MANCHESTER, M60 
2LA, or phlegal@manchester.gov.uk by 23 December 2021 quoting ref 

PSH/OUT1093/960. 
John Searle, Strategic Director Place, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, 

Salford, M27 5DA Dated: 2 December 2021 

Page 7

http://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/traffic-orders/
mailto:phlegal@manchester.gov.uk


 8 

Appendix B 

 
Legal Site Notice 20mph zone  

 

Notice is hereby given that Salford City Council proposes make the City of Salford 
(Nightingale Gardens, Salford) (20mph Speed Limit) Order 2022 under the Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984.  The effect of the Order will be to make the full lengths of 
following roads subject to a 20mph speed limit:  
Wrigley Avenue;  

Stancliffe Drive;  
Holden Drive;  
Sillavan Close;  

Borchardt Drive;  
Liebert Drive. 

A copy of the proposed Order together with the plan showing the proposal and a 
statement of the Council's reasons for proposing to make the Order may be 
inspected at Swinton Gateway, 100 Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 6BP Monday to 

Friday 9am to 6pm. Details can be viewed online at 
http://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/traffic-orders/. If you wish to 

object to the proposed Order you should send the grounds of your objection in writing 
to Fiona Ledden, City Solicitor PO BOX 532, TOWN HALL, MANCHESTER, M60 
2LA, or phlegal@manchester.gov.uk by 23 December 2021 quoting ref 

PSH/OUT1093/960. 
John Searle, Strategic Director Place 

Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, Salford, M27 5DA   
Dated: 2 December 2021 
 

Page 8

http://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/traffic-orders/
mailto:phlegal@manchester.gov.uk


N

 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019737
PROJECT

CLIENT

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,
SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

DRAWING

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

© Salford City Council

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,
SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

DRAWING

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

© Salford City Council

This drawing is copyright to Salford City Council. It shall not be used without permission for any
purpose. Reproduction is only permitted by prior arrangement. Do not scale from this drawing. All
discrepancies to be related back to the originator for verification prior to commencing the works.
All dimensions are in                    unless otherwise stated.

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT REF. REVISION

www.salford.gov.uk

DATESCALE @ A3DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

            project              -  originator   -    asset      -    loc    - file type - role -    number

PURPOSE OF ISSUE

M:\2341 Nightingale Gardens\2.0 TMU & Drawings\Draft TRO plans.dwg

TAYLOR WIMPY
MANCHESTER

NIGHTINGALE GARDENS
DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED 20MPH TRAFFIC 
REGULATION ORDER 
FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

RMS RMS RO 1:1000 26/08/2021

TRO 2341 A

010181-SCC-HMK-TT-DR-C-0001

KEY

Green hatched area extent of 20mph streets

Blue dots indicate position of 20mph zone entry
and exit signs.

NOTES:
ALL ROAD MARKINGS & TRAFFIC
SIGNS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
TSRGD2016.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



10
m

10m
12m

10m

10
m

10m

15
m

6m

10
m

N

 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019737
PROJECT

CLIENT

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,
SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

DRAWING

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

© Salford City Council

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,
SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

DRAWING

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

© Salford City Council

This drawing is copyright to Salford City Council. It shall not be used without permission for any
purpose. Reproduction is only permitted by prior arrangement. Do not scale from this drawing. All
discrepancies to be related back to the originator for verification prior to commencing the works.
All dimensions are in                    unless otherwise stated.

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT REF. REVISION

www.salford.gov.uk

DATESCALE @ A3DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

            project              -  originator   -    asset      -    loc    - file type - role -    number

PURPOSE OF ISSUE

M:\2341 Nightingale Gardens\2.0 TMU & Drawings\Draft 2 TRO plans.dwg

TAYLOR WIMPY
MANCHESTER

NIGHTINGALE GARDENS
DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED TRAFFIC REGULATION
ORDER TO PROTECT VEHICLE AND 
PEDESTRIAN ACCESS & SIGHT LINES 

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

RMS RMS RO 1:1000 28/01/2022

TRO 2341 B

010181-SCC-HMK-TT-DR-C-0002

millimetresmillimetres

NOTES:
ALL ROAD MARKINGS & TRAFFIC
SIGNS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
TSRGD2016.

EXISTING NO WAITING AT ANY
TIME RESTRICTIONS TO DIAG.
1018.1 TO REMAIN

KEY

PROPOSED NO WAITING AT
ANY TIME RESTRICTIONS TO
DIAG. 1018.1 JUNCTION AND
TURNING HEAD PROTECTION

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 

 

 

 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO LEAD MEMBER BRIEFING FOR 
PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

 
ON 

 
19th April 2022

 
 
City of Salford (Chapel Street, Ordsall) (One Way Traffic with Contra Flow Bus 

Lane) Order 2022 
 

Salford City Council (Victoria Bridge Street, Salford) (Revocation of One Way 

Order, Introduction of Weight limit and Prohibition of right turn) Order 2013 
(Amendment) Order 2022 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  

 
That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the 

contents of this report and make a decision to: 
 
Authorise the making of the permanent Traffic Regulation Orders in the form given in 

the Notice of Proposals as set out in this report. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 

A contraflow bus lane on Chapel Street between Victoria Bridge Street and Cathedral 
Approach was introduced in November 2020 under an Experimental Traffic Regulation 

Order (ETRO). An amendment was also made to exempt cyclists from an existing 
Prohibition of Right Turn restriction on Victoria Bridge Street at the same time. As the 
18-month duration of these ETRO’s is due to expire in May 2022, the Orders must 

either be made permanent as recommended by Officers or abandoned.   

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
 

- City Centre Transport Strategy 2040. 
 

KEY DECISION: No 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3b



 2 

 

DETAILS:  

As part of the City Centre Transport Strategy there is an aim that 90% of all trips to 
the city centre will be by foot, cycle or using public transport in the morning peak, by 
2040. 

 
With the completion of the Manchester Salford Inner Relief Route scheme at Regent 

Road and Water Street, there is an opportunity to lock in traffic reduction benefits in 
the core of the city centre. The City Centre Transport Strategy has identified several 
interventions on the local highways network around the north and west of the City 

Centre core, which could individually or when combined deliver significant benefits 
for buses, active travel and air quality in the area. 

 
One of these interventions entailed introducing a contraflow bus lane on Chapel 
Street between Victoria Bridge Street and Cathedral Approach. As part of this 

scheme, an amendment to an existing Prohibition of Right Turn Order except for 
buses was made to also provide an exemption for cyclists to turn right from Victoria 

Bridge Street onto Chapel Street.  
 
In November 2020, Officers introduced the scheme under an 18-month long 

Experimental Traffic Regulation Order with the objectives of: 
 

1. Enhancing the passage of public service vehicles to create more reliable bus 
journey times. 

2. Reduce the level of private car journeys in the City Centre region to have a 

positive impact on environmental air quality. 
3. To reduce the level of private car journeys in the City Centre region to promote 

a safer environment for the public to walk and cycle. 
 
The contra-flow bus lane has been enforced by Traffic Enforcement Camera’s during 

the experimental period to promote compliance with the scheme and reduce the 
number of private car journeys along this section of Chapel Street.  

 
At the time of writing, the ETRO has been operational for 16 months during which 
there has been no recorded collisions reported between the scheme initiation date 

(27th November 2020) and the latest available collision data (31st July 2021). 
 
PROPOSAL 
 

It is proposed to make permanent the Experimental Traffic Regulation Order on 
Chapel Street between Victoria Bridge Street and Cathedral Approach. The scheme 

entails the introduction of a contraflow bus lane for north-eastbound motorists, and 
one-way traffic flow for south-westbound motorists. The contraflow bus lane permits 
access for buses and cyclists.  

 
It is also proposed to make permanent the Experimental Traffic Regulation Order on 

Victoria Bridge to exempt buses and cyclists from the prohibition of right turn 
restriction onto Chapel Street.  

Page 14



 3 

 
 
CONSIDERATION OF OBJECTIONS 
 

There was a total of 7 objections received during the initial 6-month objection period 

for the Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders.   
 
The following summarises the objections and provides a response. 

 
Objection 1: Delivery, commuter and visitor journeys to the 100 Embankment site 

will be disrupted as individuals will no longer be able access the site from Chapel 
Street, instead they will be required to re-route along A6042 Trinity Way, and A56 
Victoria Street (Manchester).    

SCC Officer Response: Any visitors having to re-route will be required to travel less 

than a mile to access the site from A56 Victoria Street.  Delivery journeys should 

remain on the key route network for as long as possible. Several schemes are planned 
along Chapel Street to improve the public realm and promote it as a key walking and 
cycling corridor, so reducing motor vehicle journeys along here is a key aspiration for 

this area. The City Centre Transport Strategy has an aim that 90% of all trips to the 
city centre will be by foot, cycle or using public transport in the morning peak, by 2040. 

Commuters travelling by any of these sustainable modes will still be able to access the 
site from Chapel Street. 

 

Objection 2: 

1) Inadequate directional signage to inform travellers heading towards Q-Park, 
Victoria Rail Station and AO Arena.  

2) The enforcement of the bus lane is generating unfair charges 
3) Why such a short length of road is deemed a bus lane one way.   

SCC Officer Response:  

1) The Manchester Arena and Victoria destinations are visible on advanced 
direction signs located on Chapel Street and Trinity Way. In both instances 

motorists are directed to travel along the A6042 Ring Road. Q-Park is not 
considered an appropriate destination for the Local Highway Authority to 

provide dedicated signage for as it is a privately operated car park.  
2) The bus lane has been designed in accordance with the Traffic Signs 

Regulations and General Directions 2016. Additional information signs have 

been installed on the approach to inform motorists of the contra-flow bus lane. 
A 2.5 month grace period was also given for motorists to become accustomed 

to the new road layout before enforcement commenced.  
3) The length of the contraflow bus lane has been designed to achieve the 

objectives of reducing car journeys in this region of the city centre, while 

minimising disruption to the surrounding businesses & accesses. 
 

Page 15



 4 

Objection 3: Objector has received 2 Penalty Charge Notices for contravening the bus 

lane and has questioned several aspects of the scheme: 

1) Does not understand why the scheme has been introduced or what benefits it 

will achieve. 
2) Why are the signs not clear; the position of the bus lane signs have replaced 

the position of a previous restricted parking zone sign.  
3) No warning letter prior to receiving the penalties. 

SCC Officer Response: 

1) The scheme has been introduced to deliver the objectives set out within the City 
Centre Transport Strategy. The scheme intends to promote walking, cycling and 

public transport by contributing towards a less car dominant environment.  
2) The signs have been designed in accordance with the Traffic Signs Regulations 

and General Directions 2016. Furthermore, a bus lane technical file has been 

produced by a third-party consultant verifying compliance of the schemes 
design.  

3) The bus lane was not enforced during the first 2.5 months of the scheme 
opening to allow motorists to be accustomed to the new road layout. 
 

Objection 4: It is misleading how large the sign for Q-Park is in the background while 

you are unable to drive through to access it. Drivers don’t know where to turn or they 

are trapped into taking a camera enforced bus lane. 

SCC Officer Response: The scheme has been designed in accordance with the 

Traffic Signs Regulation and General Directions 2016. An advanced information sign 

has been installed on the eastbound approach on Chapel Street advising motorists 
they must turn right as there is a bus lane ahead (see Photo 1 below).  

  
Photo 1 Photo 2 

An additional information sign has been installed in March 2022 on Victoria Bridge 
Street to supplement the three prohibition of right turn signs that all motorists should 

be adhering to (see Photo 2 above as an example). Updated navigation systems 
should also identify the bus lane and re-route motorists accordingly. 

 

 

Page 16



 5 

 

Objection 5: Objection raised on behalf of Network Rail, on the following grounds: 

1) Access: Request a right to pass and repass in both directions along the full 

length of Chapel Street for Network Rail, their tenants, contractors and any 
persons duly authorised by Network Rail at all times for the following:  

a. Emergency vehicles 
b. For routine inspection & maintenance of operational infrastructure 
c. Network rails tenants for servicing, deliveries, the repair, maintenance 

and refurbishment of the arch frontages and adjoining land.  
 

2) Business premises: Network Rail have tenanted properties within the station, 
arches and adjoining land near Chapel Street. The commercial use needs to be 
retained with minimum disturbance for the existing (and future) tenants with any 

access rights under the tenancy agreement maintained and observed at all 
times.    

SCC Officer Response:  

1) Vehicular access is still permitted to Network Rail premises via A56 Victoria 
Street and any individuals walking, cycling or using public transport have 

unrestricted access from Chapel Street.  
a. There is an exemption in the Order for emergency service vehicles 

(Police/Fire/Ambulance) to enter the bus lane when required.   
b. If special access arrangements are required, it is advised to contact the 

Council’s Parking Services team to arrange for dispensation on a case-

by-case basis.  
c. Same response as b. 

 

2) The Local Highway Authority are not party to any private tenancy agreements 
made between Network Rail and their tenants. Access is still retained to the 

Network Rail premises via A56 Victoria Street. Any disputes over access 
arrangements are a matter to be resolved between the private parties involved.  
 

Objection 6: Objection raised on behalf of Q-Park, on the following grounds: 

1. Failure to provide sufficient access routes to car parking facility will lead to 

search traffic which will naturally increase traffic generation and have a negative 
impact to the local environment. 
 

2. The parking facility also provides safe and secure parking for both Travelodge 
and City Suites which are hotels located on Chapel Street/Bridge Street junction 

and the proposed routing will give no immediate access to the car park. If this 
plan continues, we are asking motorists who are in unfamiliar surroundings to 
navigate a complex and long route to the car park which will inevitably result in 

increased search traffic. Whilst this action will have a negative impact to the 
environment it will also be a terrible first impression of the city. 
 

Page 17



 6 

3. In addition, the car park is heavily used for events and this new road layout will 
have a detrimental impact during event nights for visitors who are both 
entering and exiting the car park during a busy period. Many of these event 

goers are visiting Manchester for the first time and the ease of parking is a 
significant factor to people returning to the city again in the future.  

SCC Officer Response: 

1) Vehicle access to the Q-park facility is still maintained from A56 Victoria Street, 
and there is no change for customers exiting the Q-Park facility. The scheme 

forms a package of wider interventions to reduce vehicular traffic in the city 
centre region, which will collectively contribute to a positive impact in terms of 

safety, air quality, and accessibility for walkers, cyclists, and passenger 
transport users.  
 

2) The CitySuites website (last checked 30/03/2022) contains a dedicated page to 
direct customers to the Q-Park facility following the new routing. Travelodge has 

its own customer car park and makes no reference to booking the Q-Park facility 
on their website (last checked 30/03/2022).  The reduction in vehicle traffic in 
this area of the city centre will support the delivery of adjacent highway 

improvement schemes such as the Chapel Street East project which in turn will 
enhance the image and experience of the City to first time visitors. 

 
3) There is no change for Q-Park customers exiting the facility, as they may exit in 

both directions.  Updated navigation systems should identify the bus lane, and 

re-route drivers to the Q-Park facility via A56 Victoria Street.  
 

Objection 7: A second objection in relation to the Embankment estate raised on the 

following grounds:  

1) The new restriction to turn right from Victoria Bridge Street onto Chapel Street 

is making access difficult to the loading bays for the estate and entry to Q-Park. 
Users will be required to follow a lengthy diversion which is causing confusion 
to visitors and users of the car park.  
 

2) Signage is not clear at the junction and motorists are continuing to turn right at 

risk of a fine from any camera enforcement.   
 

3) Doesn’t believe consultation has been carried out correctly which has led to 

confusion and a lack of understanding on how these changes have affected the 
customers of the estate. 

SCC Officer Response: 

1) The prohibition of right turn from Victoria Bridge Street onto Chapel Street has 
been in place since 2013, this is not a new change. The scheme has only added 

an additional exemption for cyclists. Any motorists making this turning 
movement previously have done so in contravention of the restriction.  
 

Page 18



 7 

2) The scheme has been designed in accordance with TSRGD 2016, and a bus 
lane technical file has been produced to verify the adherence to design 
standards for the scheme. An additional information sign has been installed on 

Victoria Bridge Street in March 2022 (more recent than the objection) to further 
highlight to motorists that there is a bus lane ahead. There are also three signs 

incorporated into the traffic signal heads to show the right turn is prohibited since 
2013.  Any motorists receiving a penalty having travelled along Victoria Bridge 
Street will have contravened 3 prohibition of right turn signs and 2 no entry signs 

associated with the contraflow bus lane.  
 

3) The scheme has been introduced under an Experimental Traffic Order where 
the public consultation period is carried out after the order becomes live with the 
restrictions already in place. It is appreciated an initial period of disruption may 

occur when the changes first took place, and a 2.5 month grace period before 
enforcing the bus lane was provided to allow motorists to become accustomed 

to the new road layout. As the experimental order has been in place for 16 
months at the time of writing, customers of the estate should now be familiar  
with how to access and egress from their site depending on their mode of travel.  

Deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel 

 

The Lead Member Briefing will be held online. Members of the Traffic Advisory Panel 
will be invited to join the Briefing. The objectors will have the opportunity to make their 
representations to the Lead Member during the Briefing. 
 
Recommendation 

 

It is the recommendation of Traffic Advisory Panel that the objections be considered 
and a decision is made to introduce the experimental traffic orders on a permanent 

basis as originally advertised.  
 
Appendices: 

 
Appendix 1 – Schedules as advertised 

Appendix 2 – Scheme Plan 
 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

   
- Local Transport Plan 
- City Centre Transport Strategy 2040 

 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A 
 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

 

Page 19



 8 

The scheme has been designed and constructed in accordance with the Traffic Signs 
Manual and Traffic Sign Regulations and General Directions (TSRGD 2016). 
 

A bus lane technical file has also been produced to verify compliance with the 
required standards.   

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
The Council, by virtue of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 can introduce orders to 

manage traffic. Where Traffic Regulation Orders are required, they should not give rise 
to any particular legal implications provided the works and procedures are carried out 
in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements, which would include the 

consideration of any objections to a proposed TRO. 
 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:    

 
The scheme has been funded by the Department for Transport’s Emergency Active 

Travel (EAT) Fund. Should the scheme be made permanent as recommended, there 
will be no additional costs incurred. Should a decision be made to abandon the 
scheme, additional costs will need to be incurred to remove the associated bus lane 

infrastructure.  
 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Michael Kilby   
 

 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  Blackfriars and Trinity 

 
 
John Searle 

Strategic Director, Place 
 

 
 

Page 20



 9 

Appendices 

 
Appendix 1: Schedules as advertised 

 
City Of Salford (Chapel Street, Ordsall) (One Way Traffic with Contra Flow Bus Lane) 

(Experimental) Order 2020 
 
Schedule 1: One Way Traffic 

 

Column 1  Column 2 

Length of Road Direction 

Chapel Street South-westbound Traffic Lane, From a point 47 metres 
northeast of the north-easterly projected kerbline of Greengate, 

in a south westerly direction, to its junction with Victoria Bridge 
Street. 

 

Schedule 2: Contra-Flow Bus Lane 
 

Chapel Street North-eastbound Traffic Lane, From the junction of Victoria 
Bridge Street, in a north easterly direction to a point 47 metres 

northeast of the north-easterly projected kerbline of Greengate. 

 
Salford City Council (Victoria Bridge Street, Salford) (Revocation Of One Way Order, 

Introduction Of Weight Limit And Prohibition Of Right Turn) Order 2013 (Amendment) 
(Experimental) Order 2020 
 

Schedule 1 

Column 1  Column 2 

Schedule to the 
Order of 2013 

Length of road to be deleted 

Schedule 3 Prohibition of right turn from Victoria Bridge Street onto Chapel 

Street except for buses. 

 
Schedule 2:  

Column 1  Column 2 

Schedule to the 

Order of 2013 

Length of road to be Included 

Schedule 3 Prohibition of right turn from Victoria Bridge Street onto Chapel 
Street except for buses and cycles. 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 21



 10 

 
Appendix 2: Scheme Plan  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 22



Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 
 

ITEM NO. 

 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
 

LEAD MEMBER BRIEFING 
 

19th April 2022 

 
 

TRO 2366 Swinton Greenway – South Avenue 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the objection, the 
contents of this report and make a decision to: 
 

City of Salford (South Avenue/Folly Lane, Swinton) (Prohibition of Waiting) Order 2016 
(Amendment) Order 2022: 

 
Authorise the making of the Traffic Regulation Order in the form given in the Notice of 
Proposals. 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 

Salford City Council has developed plans to improve the cycling routes between Swinton and 
Monton, extending Salford’s existing traffic-free cycle network. The Swinton Greenway 

proposals will improve both off-road and on-road links to encourage cycling and walking in 
Salford, promoting more sustainable travel and helping to create healthier and more 

attractive neighbourhoods. It is designed in conjunction with proposals to ensure 
connectivity to Salford’s wider walking and cycling network. 

 
The original Traffic Regulation Orders were advertised in June 2020. Following consideration 
of the objections, some amendments were suggested to the advertised proposals. Therefore 
the new follow up Traffic Regulation Orders were advertised.    
 
The Traffic Management Unit have been formally consulted on the proposals  for South 

Avenue on 1st June 2021 and there were no adverse comments received. The TRO was 
legally advertised on 11th October 2021 until 1st November 2021, during which time one 
objection has been received and one support.  

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 3c



 2 

 
BACKGROUND: 

 
Salford City Council has developed plans to improve the cycling routes between Swinton and 
Monton, extending Salford’s existing traffic-free cycle network. The Swinton Greenway proposals will 
improve both off-road and on-road links to encourage cycling and walking in Salford, promoting 
more sustainable travel and helping to create healthier and more attractive neighbourhoods. It is 
designed in conjunction with proposals to ensure connectivity to Salford’s wider walking and cycling 
network. 
 
Swinton Greenway will include the 2.5km route between Manchester Road, Swinton & Pendlebury 
and Monton Road, Eccles with several additional links to schools, colleges and the wider community 
to improve accessibility for pedestrians and cyclists as much as possible. The route will be as 
accessible as possible, being a minimum width of 3m in width wherever possible and w ill cover a 
total length of 7km, 5km of which will be off road with the remainder being on road.  
 
The majority of the off-road link is an existing route (mainly definitive footpath) that extends from 
Monton Road through to A6 Manchester Road in Swinton, which will be widened in places and 
upgraded to facilitate an upgraded shared cycle and pedestrian route. There are various junctions, 
where the off-highway route links into the adopted highway. The proposed highway works will 
provide continuity to the route, which, in turn, connects to a wider network of plans for 
improvements to existing infrastructure that will encourage and promote walking and cycling.  
 
The report is presented to accurately reflect the discussions at the previous Lead Member Briefing  in 
November 2021 and to ensure the corrected Record of Decision is signed and published. This relates 
only to the disabled bay and extent of the prohibition of waiting restrictions on South Avenue.  
 
The following table outlines the advertised proposals and made representations: 

 
 TRO Representations 

1. 
City of Salford (South Avenue/Folly Lane, Swinton) (Prohibition of 
Waiting) Order 2016 (Amendment) Order 2021 

1 objection and  
1 support. 

2. 
City of Salford (South Avenue, Swinton Park) (Disabled Persons Parking 
Places) Order 2021 

1 support (the same 
as above) 

 
The affected lengths of the proposals as advertised are detailed in this report in Appendix 1 and 
indicated on the plans in Appendix 2. 

 
CONSIDERATION OF OBJECTIONS: 
 
A summary of representations is presented in the below. 
 
 
1. City of Salford (South Avenue/Folly Lane, Swinton) (Prohibition of Waiting) Order 2016 
(Amendment) Order 2021 

 

Page 26



 3 

Objection: We are writing to object to the proposed amendment to waiting restrictions on South 
Avenue at the junction with Folly Lane.  

The proposed no waiting at any time on the north side of South Avenue will impact the residents 
and businesses on South Avenue and Folly Lane, restricting parking spaces even more and cause 
hostility and resentment in what is usually a settled neighbourhood.  

There is adequate space already for the new disabled parking and for residents to park across from 
the parking bay and allow vehicles to travel up and down the road. Residents currently give way to 
one another and this has minimal disruption and should not be changed.  

Presently there are heavy queues due to roadworks, traffic lights and disgruntled motorists 
causing increased emissions pollution and noise causing disruption at all times of the day and 
night.  

We have also suffered from limited services due to the roadworks. (…) deliveries have been unable 
to deliver and utilities unable to gain access (…). We do not want to be limited further by the 
proposed parking restrictions which will hinder us further (…). 

Response: The 10m on the north side enables the proposed disabled bay to be installed 10m from 
the junction. This is thought to be an objection to the 20m on the south side . The Lead Member 
for Planning and Sustainable Development has asked to amend the proposals on South Avenue to 
include 24 hours, 7 days a week Disabled Persons Parking Place. As the formalised bay could be 
occupied at all times on carriageway it is proposed to extend double yellow lines on south side of 
South Avenue to provide adequate space for traffic to use the remaining highway width. 

The remainder of South Avenue is unrestricted. That means a car could also park fully on 
carriageway just after the waiting restrictions ends. It is considered that 10 metres of junction 
protection as per Highway Code on South Avenue will create sufficient space to enable vehicles to 
pass. 10 metres is also required prior to the commencement of the on carriageway disabled bay 
that is included within these proposals. 

Support: I support the proposal mentioned above, which seems strange as this was all agreed [at 
the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development in November 2020].  

Response: The Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development has asked to amend the 
proposals on South Avenue to include 24 hours, 7 days a week Disabled Persons Parking Place. 
This is a new proposal hence the new Traffic Regulation Order process had to commence. The 
additional double yellow lines are required to support the introduction of the disabled bay.  

 
DELIBERATIONS OF THE TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 
 
This matter was originally considered by the Traffic Advisory Panel and Lead Member in November 
2021. However, it is noted that an incorrect record of decision has been published. Legal advice is to 
have the Lead Member and Traffic Advisory Panel reconsider this matter. 

 

 

Page 27



 4 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the objection, the 

contents of this report and make a decision to: 
 

City of Salford (South Avenue/Folly Lane, Swinton) (Prohibition of Waiting) Order 2016 
(Amendment) Order 2022: 

 
Authorise the making of the Traffic Regulation Order in the form given in the Notice of 

Proposals. 
 
 
Appendix: 
 

Appendix 1 – Schedules as advertised 
Appendix 2 – Plans as advertised 

  

Page 28



 5 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Local Transport Plan 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
 
The restrictions will be marked out in accordance with the Traffic Signs Manual and Traffic Sign 
Regulations and General Directions (TSRGD 2016). 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: The Council, by virtue of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 can introduce 
orders to manage traffic. Where Traffic Regulation Orders are required, they should not give rise to 
any particular legal implications provided the works and procedures are carried out in accordance with 
the relevant statutory requirements, which would include the consideration of any objections to a 
proposed TRO. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The proposed scheme will be funded from the Mayor’s Challenge Fund 
(MCF). 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Robert Owen, Raymond Scholes, Judyta Hands         
 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Swinton Park 
 
John Searle 
Strategic Director, Place 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Notice is hereby given that the Council of the City of Salford proposes to make the  
following orders under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.The titles and effect of the 
proposed Orders will be as follows. City Of Salford (Winchester Road, Hereford 
Road, Manchester Road, Dorchester Road, Princess Street, Overdale And Barton 
Road) (Prohibition And Restriction Of Waiting) (Amendment) Order 2021 Proposed 
No Waiting At Any Time on: Winchester Road, Eccles - South west side, from a point 8 
metres south of south eastern extended kerbline of Hereford Road, in a south easterly 
direction for a distance of 23 metres. North east side, from the southern extended 
kerbline of Hereford Road, in a south easterly direction for a distance of 18 metres. 
Hereford Road, Eccles - South and east side, the extended north eastern kerb line of 
Winchester Road, in a north easterly direction for a distance of 14m. Manchester Road, 
Swinton Park - South side, from a point 15m west of the extended western kerbline of 
Dorchester Road to a point 15m east of the eastern extended kerbline of Dorchester 
Road. Dorchester Road, Swinton Park - West side, from the southern extended kerb 
line of Manchester Road in a southerly direction for a distance of 15m. West side, from 
a point 36.5m south of southern extended kerbline of Manchester Road in a southerly 
direction to a point 26.5m south of the south eastern extended kerbline of Princess 
Street. East side, from the southern extended kerbline of Manchester Road for a 
distance of 89.7m in a southerly direction. East side, from a point 95.7m south of the 
southern extended kerbline of Manchester Road for a distance of 27.6m in a southerly 
direction. Princess Street, Swinton Park - North west side, from the western extended 
kerbline of Dorchester Road in a south westerly direction for a distance of 23.5m. South 
east side, from the western extended kerbline of Dorchester Road in a south westerly 
direction for a distance of 18.3m. Overdale, Swinton Park - South side, from a point 
101m south west of the western extended kerbline of Barton Road for a distance of 
16.5m in a south westerly direction to crossing. Both sides, from a point 155.5m south 
west of the western extended kerbline of Barton Road for a distance of 23m in a south 
westerly direction from the crossing. North side from a point 57m south west of the 
western extended kerbline of Barton Road for a distance of 20m in a south westerly 
direction.  
City of Salford (Dorchester Road) (Goods Vehicles Loading/Unloading) Order 
2021 Proposed Goods Vehicle Loading/Unloading on: Dorchester Road - from a point 
89.7m south of the southern extended kerbline of Manchester Road for a distance of 6m 
in a southerly direction. 
City of Salford (South Avenue, Swinton Park) (Disabled Persons Parking Places) 
Order 2021 Proposed Disabled Persons Parking Places on: Swinton Park - from a point 
10m east of the eastern extended kerbline of Folly Lane, in an easterly direction for a 
distance of 6.6m. Folly Lane - from a point 10m east of the eastern extended kerbline of 
Folly Lane, in an easterly direction for a distance of 6.6m. City of Salford (South 
Avenue/Folly Lane, Swinton) (Prohibitionof Waiting) Order 2016 (Amendment) 
Order 2021 The above Order is amended by the inclusion of the following restrictions 
Proposed No Waiting At Any Time on: South Avenue - north side, from the eastern 
extended kerbline of Folly Lane, in an easterly direction for a distance of 10m. south 
side, from the eastern extended kerbline of Folly Lane, in an easterly direction for a 
distance of 20m. City Of Salford (East Lancashire Road And Anson Road, Salford) 
(20 MPH Speed Limit Zone) Order 2021 The Order shall be to prohibit any person 
from driving any motor vehicle at a speed exceeding 20 m.p.h. on the following roads 
for their entire length unless otherwise stated; East Lancashire Road - Slip Road 
between No’s 199 and 265) (Full length of slip road). Anson Road. A copy of the Orders 
and plans will be available for inspection at Swinton Gateway, 100 Chorley Road, 

Page 31



Swinton, M27 6BP, Monday to Friday 9am to 6pm.  Details can also be viewed online at 
http://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/traffic-orders/. (due to the 
COVID19 restrictions, please ensure that the Gateway is open before attending). 
Alternatively, copies of the documentation may be requested via the email or postal 
addresses below. If you wish to object to the proposals you should send the grounds of 
your objection in writing to Fiona Ledden, City Solicitor: PO BOX 532, TOWN HALL, 
MANCHESTER, M60 2LA or phlegal@manchester.gov.uk by the 4th November 2021 
quoting ref GS/OUT1093/ Peter Openshaw, Interim Strategic Director 
Dated: 14th October 2021 
 
 

 

Page 32

http://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/traffic-orders/
mailto:phlegal@manchester.gov.uk


10m

SOUTH AVENUE

20

DISABLED

FO
LLY LAN

E

2.4m

6.6m

This drawing is copyright to Salford City Council. It shall not be used without permission for any
purpose. Reproduction is only permitted by prior arrangement. Do not scale from this drawing. All
discrepancies to be related back to the originator for verification prior to commencing the works.
All dimensions are in                    unless otherwise stated.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND
ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards / risks associated with the types of work detailed on this
drawing, note the following;

Construction;

Maintenance / Cleaning;

Decommissioning / Demolition;

It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor working, where
appropriate, to an approved method statement.

PROJECT

DRAWING

CLIENT

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT REF. REVISION

www.salford.gov.uk

DATESCALE @ A3DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

            project              -  originator   -    asset      -    loc    - file type - role -    number

PURPOSE OF ISSUE

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,
SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

© Salford City Council M:\2366 Swinton Greenway 2\2.0 TMU & Drawings\TMU- TRO 2366- Swinton Greenway 2.dwg

millimetres

Salford City Council
Swinton South and Eccles

Swinton Greenway
Folly Lane and South Avenue

Proposed No Waiting At Any Time restrictions
General layout plan

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

RMS RMS RO 1:200 10/05/2021

TRO 2366 TMU02

008548-01-SCC-HMK-TT-DR-C-0001

Key:
Yellow lines indicate proposed
amended No Waiting At Any
Time restrictions

 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019737

Magenta arrows, lines and text 
indicates measurement lengths

Dashed Red lines and text 
indicates proposed disabled bay
markings

P
age 33



W
INCHESTER RO

AD

ROAD

HEREFORD

Proposed off
road cycle route

18m

8m

23m

14m

This drawing is copyright to Salford City Council. It shall not be used without permission for any
purpose. Reproduction is only permitted by prior arrangement. Do not scale from this drawing. All
discrepancies to be related back to the originator for verification prior to commencing the works.
All dimensions are in                    unless otherwise stated.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND
ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards / risks associated with the types of work detailed on this
drawing, note the following;

Construction;

Maintenance / Cleaning;

Decommissioning / Demolition;

It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor working, where
appropriate, to an approved method statement.

PROJECT

DRAWING

CLIENT

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT REF. REVISION

www.salford.gov.uk

DATESCALE @ A3DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

            project              -  originator   -    asset      -    loc    - file type - role -    number

PURPOSE OF ISSUE

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,
SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

© Salford City Council \\uvstore\enghigh$\Traffic Management\Traffic Management and Control\2366 Swinton Greenway 2\2.0 TMU & Drawings\TMU- TRO 2366- Swinton Greenway 2.dwg

millimetres

Salford City Council
Swinton South and Eccles

Swinton Greenway
Hereford Road / Winchester Road 

Proposed No Waiting At Any Time restrictions
General layout plan

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

RMS RMS RO 1:250 10/05/2021

TRO 2366 TMU02

008548-01-SCC-HMK-TT-DR-C-0002 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019737

Key:
Proposed "No Waiting At Any 
Time TRO " (Double yellow lines)

Magenta arrows, lines and text 
indicates measurement lengths

P
age 34



THIRD AVENUE

BE
EC

H
FI

E L
D

 R
O

AD

LEIGH AVENUE

AYLSHAM MEWS

FOURTH AVENUE

MARDALE ROAD

THORNLEA AVENUE
W

EN
TW

O
R

TH
 R

O
AD

 AVENUE

ARLINGTON AVENUE

VE
N

D
AL

E 
AV

EN
U

E
DR

IV
E

D
A L

ES
 P

A R
K

FO
LL

Y 
LA

NE

WORSLEY ROAD

GORSE R
OAD

CHILHAM STREET

LABURNUM AVENUE

FIR
SW

O
O

D
 D

R
IVE

MEREDEW AVENUE

CAM
PBELL RO

AD

HENNIKER STREET

MORLEY AVENUE

AN
SO

N R
OAD

MORPETH STREET

KILDARE ROAD

M
APLE R

O
AD

ACACIA AVENUE

FO
LL

Y LA
NE

THORN ROAD

W
ES

T 
M

EA
DE

FIR ROAD

DALE STREET

ANSON AVENUE

D
ALES

BR
O

W
TREVO

R
 R

O
AD

WOODGARTH DRIVE

WYVILLE DRIVE

EN
FI

EL
D 

RO
AD

SOUTH MEADE

EA
ST

 M
EA

DE

MARLOW DRIVE

WESTGATE DRIVE

MANOR ROAD

MALDON CRESCENT

LICHFIELD DRIVE

SH
ER

IN
G

H
AM

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

IL
T E

R
N

 D
RI

VE

EAST LANCASHIRE ROAD

Dia g.  1
02 3A

D iag.  102
3A

Diag.  102
3A

D iag. 1023A

Diag.  102
3A

D
i ag.  1057

D
iag . 1057

D
iag . 1057

Di
ag

.  1
00

3-B

D
ia g.  1057

D
iag . 1057

D
iag . 1057

D
iag. 1009-A

D
iag.  1009-A

D
iag.  1009-A

D
i a

g .
 10

57

D iag.  100
4

D i ag.  1004

D i ag.  1004

D i ag.  1004

D i ag.  1004

D i ag.  1004

D
i ag.  1065

D
i ag.  1065

D i ag.  1018.1

D
ia

g.
 10

18
.1

D i ag.  101
8.1

D i ag.  1018
.1

D
ia

g.
 10

04

Di a g.  1062

D
iag . 1004

D
i ag.  1065

Di
a g

.  
100

1 .5

D
iag . 1018. 1

D
iag.  1003-A

D
iag.  1003-A

D
ia

g.
1 0

0 1
.5

D
ia

g.
 1

0 0
3-B

Proposed off
road route

CAM
PBELL RO

AD

CAM
PBELL RO

AD

WEST MEADE

GORSE ROAD

ENFIELD ROAD

10

10

10

10

10

10
10

10

65

72

10

THORN ROAD

C
AM

PBELL R
O

AD

R
O

LAG
 C

R
E SC

EN
T

CAMPBELL ROAD

NASSAU DRIVE

AR
KW

R
I G

H
T  W

AY

H
O

R
R

O
C

KS LAN
E

HARG
REAVES STREET

HATTERSLEY CLOSE

MERINO GROVE

LAKEF IELD
 G

ARD
EN

S

LAKEFIELD GARDENS

ROLAG CRESCENT

R
O

LAG
 C

R
E SC

EN
T

JACQUARD CLOSE

CAMPBELL ROAD

EAST LANCASHIRE ROAD

EC
C

LE
S 

R
O

AD

EC
C

LE
S 

R
O

AD

Key:
Blue lines indicate roads included
in existing 20mph Zone TRO

Green lines indicate roads 
proposed to be added 20mph 
Zone TRO

This drawing is copyright to Salford City Council. It shall not be used without permission for any
purpose. Reproduction is only permitted by prior arrangement. Do not scale from this drawing. All
discrepancies to be related back to the originator for verification prior to commencing the works.
All dimensions are in                    unless otherwise stated.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND
ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards / risks associated with the types of work detailed on this
drawing, note the following;

Construction;

Maintenance / Cleaning;

Decommissioning / Demolition;

It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor working, where
appropriate, to an approved method statement.

PROJECT

DRAWING

CLIENT

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT REF. REVISION

www.salford.gov.uk

DATESCALE @ A3DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

            project              -  originator   -    asset      -    loc    - file type - role -    number

PURPOSE OF ISSUE

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,
SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

© Salford City Council M:\2366 Swinton Greenway 2\2.0 TMU & Drawings\TMU- TRO 2366- Swinton Greenway 2.dwg

millimetres

Salford City Council
Swinton South and Eccles

Swinton Greenway
Campbell Road 20mph Zone

Proposed addition of  East Lancashire
Slip Road fronting No's 199 to 265
and Anson Road

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

RMS RMS RO N.T.S 10/05/2021

TRO 2366 TMU02

008548-01-SCC-HMK-TT-DR-C-0003 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019737

P
age 35



DO
RC

HE
ST

ER
 R

OA
D

PRINCESS STREET

MANCHESTER ROAD

BUS
STOP

1

5

m

1

5

m

1

5

m

2

1

.
5

m

2

0

.
5

m

1

7

.
5

m

LO
AD

IN
G 

ON
LY

6

m

8

9

.
7

m

2

7

.
6

m

2

3

.

5

m

2

0

m

1

8

.

3

m

2

6

.
5

m

54
.5m

 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019737

Key:
Proposed No Waiting At Any
Time restrictions

Magenta arrows, lines and text 
indicates measurement lengths

Dashed Red lines and text 
indicates proposed Loading bay
markings

This drawing is copyright to Salford City Council. It shall not be used without permission for any
purpose. Reproduction is only permitted by prior arrangement. Do not scale from this drawing. All
discrepancies to be related back to the originator for verification prior to commencing the works.
All dimensions are in                    unless otherwise stated.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND
ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards / risks associated with the types of work detailed on this
drawing, note the following;

Construction;

Maintenance / Cleaning;

Decommissioning / Demolition;

It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor working, where
appropriate, to an approved method statement.

PROJECT

DRAWING

CLIENT

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT REF. REVISION

www.salford.gov.uk

DATESCALE @ A3DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

            project              -  originator   -    asset      -    loc    - file type - role -    number

PURPOSE OF ISSUE

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,

SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

Salford City Council

© Salford City Council \\uvstore\enghigh$\Traffic Management\Traffic Management and Control\2366 Swinton Greenway 2\2.0 TMU & Drawings\TMU- TRO 2366- Swinton Greenway 2.dwg

millimetres

Salford  City Council
Ward Swinton South

Swinton Greenway 2
Dorchester Road

Proposed Waiting & Loading Restrictions
General Layout Plan

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

RMS RMS RO 1:400 10/05/2021

TRO 2366 TMU02

008548-01-SCC-HMK-TT-DR-C-0004

Dashed and continuous Cyan  
lines and text indicates 
proposed Bus stop markings

Page 36

AutoCAD SHX Text
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
5 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
135 to 141

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
2 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
18 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
207

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
10 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
10 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
184

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
The Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
N



OVERDALE

BA
R

TO
N

 R
O

AD

15
m

15
m

15m

78m39.5m

42m
20m

OVERDALE

17m 5.5m

7.5m

39.5m

5m

23.7m

10m

21m

20m

This drawing is copyright to Salford City Council. It shall not be used without permission for any
purpose. Reproduction is only permitted by prior arrangement. Do not scale from this drawing. All
discrepancies to be related back to the originator for verification prior to commencing the works.
All dimensions are in                    unless otherwise stated.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND
ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards / risks associated with the types of work detailed on this
drawing, note the following;

Construction;

Maintenance / Cleaning;

Decommissioning / Demolition;

It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor working, where
appropriate, to an approved method statement.

PROJECT

DRAWING

CLIENT

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT REF. REVISION

www.salford.gov.uk

DATESCALE @ A3DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

            project              -  originator   -    asset      -    loc    - file type - role -    number

PURPOSE OF ISSUE

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,
SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

© Salford City Council M:\2366 Swinton Greenway 2\2.0 TMU & Drawings\TMU- TRO 2366- Swinton Greenway 2 Rev A.dwg

millimetres

Salford City Council
Swinton South and Eccles

Swinton Greenway
Overdale

Proposed No Waiting At Any Time restrictions
and zebra crossing

S2 - FOR INFORMATION

RMS RMS RO 1:400 25/05/2021

TRO 2366 TMU02

008548-01-SCC-HMK-TT-DR-C-0005 © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019737

Key:
Proposed No Waiting At Any
Time restrictions

Magenta arrows, lines and text 
indicates measurement lengths

Dashed and solid red lines 
indicates proposed zebra 
pedestrian crossing

Proposals to be sealed as part
            of TRO 2313 waiting restrictions
            to remain

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public 
 

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE 

 

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR 

PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT  

ON 19 APRIL 2022

 
TITLE: Parr Fold Park – Section 106 Contribution Investment 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable 

Development approves; 

 
1. The expenditure of £303,331.92 of Section 106 contributions towards Parr Fold Park 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
It is proposed to utilise a total of £303,331.92 of secured Section 106 contributions towards 

the following works as identified within the Open Space chapter of Salford’s Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan. 

 

 Access, infrastructure and open space improvements required to upgrade the park to 

Green Flag standard, the benchmark international standard for publicly accessible 
parks. 

 Improvements of the sports facilities and in particular the Tennis Courts. 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 

 N/A 

 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 3d



 2 

KEY DECISION: NO 
 

 

DETAILS: 
 

1.0 Background 

 
1.1 In line with the council’s Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), 

Section 106 contributions were required from developments at the Old Co-Op Buildings, 
Walkden (Section 106 Ref: 417 – planning application 19/74442/FUL) and Hilton Lane 

(Section 106 Ref: 402 – planning application 19/73971/FUL). 
 

1.2 Full contributions from these developments have recently been received by the city council. 
This includes an open space contribution of £39,822.13 from the Co-Op Buildings (Section 
Ref 417). The signed section 106 agreement requires that the open space contribution be 

directed towards the delivery and maintenance of improvement projects at Parr Fold Park, 
Walkden. 

 
1.3 The full contributions from Hilton Lane (Section 106 Ref 402) include an open space 

contribution of and £263,509.79. The signed section 106 agreement requires that the open 
space contribution be directed towards projects at Parr Fold Park and/or Peel Park.  

 
2.0 Proposed uses of the s106 funding 

2.1 Ward councillors have been consulted and are supportive of proposals to utilise up to 
£303,331.92 of s106 funding secured for open space towards Parr Fold Park. Officers from 
the Place Directorate have worked with the Friends, local residents , ward Councillors, the 
Lawn Tennis Association and Salford Community Leisure in developing proposals aimed at 
improving the infrastructure and facilities within the park as identified in the Salford 
Greenspace Strategy and Open Space chapter of the Infrastructure Delivery Plan. 
 

2.2 It is proposed to utilise the section 106 funding towards: 
 

 access, infrastructure and open space improvements required to upgrade the park to 
Green Flag standard, the benchmark international standard for publicly accessible 

parks; and 
 refurbishment of the sports facilities and in particular the Tennis Courts . 

 
2.3 In the event that all the proposed improvements are delivered under budget it is further 

proposed that any underspend associated with S106 Ref 402 is made available for 
investment at Peel Park, Little Hulton in accordance with the S106 agreement. However, it 

is anticipated that due to the scale of the works required at Parr Fold Park to refurbish the 
tennis courts and bring the park up to green flag standard the full sum of the open space 

allocation will be required at Parr Fold Park. 

 

Page 40



 3 

3.0 Wider benefits of the project 
 

3.1   The proposed works will: 
 

 enable disabled access to all facilities within the park.  
 establish Parr Fold Park as being the key hub for the development of Tennis within the 

city. 
 complement the recent application to the Lawn Tennis Association (LTA) for additional 

investment for the resurfacing of the six tennis courts and related works to the value 
of £71,700; and 

 allow for development of a programme of training and coaching sessions in partnership 
with Salford Community Leisure and the LTA.  

 
4.0 Recommendation 

 

That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development approves: 
 

1. The expenditure of £303,331.92  of Section 106 contributions towards the improvements 
at Parr Fold Park 

 
 
 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
 Salford City Council Unitary Development Plan 2004-16 (2006); 
 Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (2015);  
 Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (2019); and 
 Salford Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning Document (2019). 

 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
The improvements will be of benefit to all. It is considered that there are no adverse impacts 
associated with this project.  
 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
Low – Developers can seek to legally challenge the city council to claim back Section 106 
monies if not used on a scheme that mitigates the impacts of that development and/or 
spent in line with the requirements of the Section 106 agreement.  

 

 

Page 41



 4 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 
Comments: The Section 106 contributions can only be invested into the mitigation of open 
space in accordance with the respective Section 106 agreements. This project is considered 

to be an appropriate use of funding on the basis that Parr Fold Park is a named project for 
the open space contributions in both the relevant agreements. 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Alex Archer, Finance 
Manager 0498 

Comments: The £303,331.92 Section 106 funding as identified in the report has been 

received and are available to fund the works. 
 

SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

Section 106 Contributions received from the development(s) at: 

 £263,509.79 from High Point at Hilton Lane (Section 106 Ref: 402 – planning application 
19/73971/FUL); 

 £39,822.13 from the Old Co-Op Buildings (Section 106 Ref: 417 – planning application 
19/74442/FUL); 

 
 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS supplied in consultation with: 
Mike Hemingway 
Comments: Climate change implications are considered through the planning application 
process, and where relevant appropriate mitigation will be identified through planning 
conditions and/or planning obligations. The Section 106 contribution(s) can only be used 
towards specific mitigation in accordance with the respective Section 106 agreement.  

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 
 

 

Page 42



 5 

CONTACT OFFICER:  

Ian Worsley (Project lead) TEL NO: 0161 925 1194 

Fiona Fryer (s106) TEL NO: 0161 793 3659  
 

 
 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Walkden South, Little Hulton  
 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a City of Salford (Nightingale Gardens, Salford) (Prohibition of Waiting) Order 2022.
	Appendix C(i) Nightingale Gardens 20 Zone plan
	Appendix C(ii) Nightingale Gardens NWAAT Rev B plan

	3b City of Salford (Chapel Street, Ordsall) (One Way Traffic with Contra Flow Bus Lane) Order 2022 AND Salford City Council (Victoria Bridge Street, Salford) (Revocation of One-Way Order, Introduction of Weight Limit and Prohibition of Right Turn) Order 2013 (Amendment) Order 2022.
	Appendix 2 - Scheme Plan

	3c Swinton Greenway - South Avenue - TRO 2366 (Correction re. Decision Notice arising from Lead Member Briefing held on 16 November 2021).
	Appendix 1 - TRO 2366 - Schedules as advertised
	Appendix 2 - TRO 2366 - Plans as advertised
	1 TRO plan South Ave
	Untitled

	2 TRO plan Hereford Rd
	3 TRO plan Dorchester Road
	Sheets and Views
	Dorchester Road


	4 TRO plan Overdale
	5 TRO 20mph Zone Campbell Rd additional streets


	3d Parr Fold Park - Section 106 Contribution Investment.



